
         

 

 

AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

CITY OF PALM BEACH GARDENS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 23, 2024 
12:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

The Oaks Center 
2501A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.avenircdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
2501A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

May 23, 2024 
12:30 p.m. 

 
A. Call to Order  

B. Proof of Publication  

C. Establish Quorum  

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. April 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting  

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution 2024-08 – Approving the Process for Requesting Temporary Access over 
District Property for Landowner Improvements 

2. Consider Landscape Maintenance Contract Award (Common Area and Clubhouse) 

3. Consider Resolution 2024-09 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Proposed Budget 

4. Consider Northlake Blvd Parkway Buffer (Town Center) Landscape And Irrigation Contract Award 

I. Change Orders 

1. Consider Approval of Northlake Boulevard Phase 1 – J.W. Cheatham, LLC CO 5 ($328,898.00) 

2. Consider Approval of Northlake Boulevard Phase 2 – J.W. Cheatham, LLC CO 7 ($1,344,517.09) 

J. Consent Agenda 

1. Consider Ratification of Ballbe Proposal for Control Structure and Outfall Canal 

2. Consider Ratification of Caulfied Wheeler Agreement (Coconut Ext SUA & SFWM) 

3. Consider Ratification of Caulfied Wheeler Agreement (Divosta Final Closing-Lake Interconnect Dedication) 

4. Consider Ratification of Caulfied Wheeler Agreement (Town Center Utility Easement) 

5. Consider Ratification of FPL Underground Agreement 

6. Consider Ratification of HSQ Supplemental Agreement 16 

7. Consider Ratification of HSQ Supplemental Agreement 17 

8. Consider Ratification of Natural Gas Agreement (Avenir E Entrance) 

9. Consider Ratification of Natural Gas Agreement (Avenir W Entrance) 

10. Consider Ratification of Caulfield – Pod 11 Phase 1 & 2 SUA Easements 

11. Consider Ratification of Caulfield – Spine 3 SUA Easements 

K. Clubhouse 

1. Clubhouse Management Update 

L. Administrative Matters 

1. Announce Qualifying Period 

M. Board Member Comments 

N. Adjourn 





 

Page 1 of 10 
 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
APRIL 10, 2024 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The April 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the Avenir Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 12:30 p.m. in the offices of Special District Services, Inc. located at 
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which indicated that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Palm Beach Post on March 29, 2024, as legally required.  
 
C.  ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors in attendance: Chairperson Virginia Cepero,  
Vice Chairman Roberto Horowitz and Supervisors Daniel Lopez and Rosa Schechter (via phone) and it 
was in order to proceed with the meeting.  
 
Also in attendance were: Jason Pierman of Special District Services, Inc.; District Counsel Michael 
Pawelczyk of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. (via phone); District Engineer Carlos 
Ballbe of Ballbe & Associates (via phone); Developer Rep. Tanya McConnell; and Clubhouse Reps Rick 
Salvatore and Patrice Chiaramonte. 
 
Also present were Andrew Karmeris of Special District Services, Inc.; Craig Kaye of Regions Bank (via 
phone); and Steve Sanford of Greenberg Traurig (via phone). 
 
D.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  February 29, 2024, Special Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the February 29, 2024, Special Board Meeting were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the February 29, 2024, Special Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
Mr. Pierman then recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the Public Hearing on the A Bonds. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING (A BONDS) 



 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented which indicated that notice of the Public Hearing had been published 
in the Palm Beach Post on March 20, 2024, and March 27, 2024, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment Regarding the Intent to Levy Special Assessments 
 
There was no public comment regarding the Intent to Levy Special Assessments. 
 
 3.  Consider Project and Levying of Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments Based on 
Comments from the Public 
 
Mr. Ballbe provided an overview of the project, noting that the A-18 project area consisted of single-
family, 80-foot lots, water and sewer, drainage, an entry feature, landscaping and irrigation.  He further 
noted that there would be both taxable and non-taxable bonds.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
project and levying of non-ad valorem special assessments based on comments from the public, as 
presented. 
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-05 – Leving Assessments (A-18) (A Bonds) 
 
Resolution No. 2024-05 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”) AUTHORIZING THE 
CONSTRUCTION AND/OR ACQUISITION OF INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS CONSTITUTING THE ASSESSMENT AREA 
TWO - PARCEL A-18 PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS; EQUALIZING, 
APPROVING, CONFIRMING, AND LEVYING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS TO SECURE THE DISTRICT’S SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2024A (PARCEL A-18 PROJECT) 
(THE “SERIES 2024A BONDS”) ON PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
ASSESSMENT AREA TWO - PARCEL A-18 PROJECT AREA 
WITHIN THE DISTRICT SPECIALLY BENEFITED BY THE 
PARCEL A-18 PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS TO PAY THE COST 
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND THE 
COLLECTION OF SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BY THE 
METHODS PROVIDED FOR BY CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 197, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; CONFIRMING THE DISTRICT'S 
INTENTION TO ISSUE ITS SERIES 2024A BONDS; MAKING 
PROVISIONS FOR TRANSFERS OF REAL PROPERTY TO 
GOVERNMENTAL BODIES; PROVIDING FOR THE RECORDING 
OF AN ASSESSMENT NOTICE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 



 

Page 3 of 10 
 

A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-05, as presented. 
Mr. Pierman then closed the Public Hearing on the A Bonds and opened the Public Hearing on the B 
Bonds. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING (B BONDS) 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented which indicated that notice of the Public Hearing had been published 
in the Palm Beach Post on March 20, 2024, and March 27, 2024, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment Regarding the Intent to Levy Special Assessments 
 
There was no public comment regarding the intent to levy special assessments. 
 
 3.  Consider Project and Levying of Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments Based on 
Comments from the Public 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that the B Bond had the same description as the A Bond, previously discussed.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
project and levying of non-ad valorem special assessments based on comments from the public. 
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-06 – Leving Assessments (A-18) (B Bonds) 
 
Resolution No. 2024-06 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-06 

A RESOLUTION OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”) AUTHORIZING THE 
CONSTRUCTION AND/OR ACQUISITION OF INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS CONSTITUTING THE ASSESSMENT AREA 
TWO - PARCEL A-18 PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS; EQUALIZING, 
APPROVING, CONFIRMING, AND LEVYING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS TO SECURE THE DISTRICT’S SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2024B (PARCEL A-18 PROJECT – 
SERIES 2024B BONDS PROJECT) (THE “SERIES 2024B BONDS”) 
ON PROPERTY WITHIN THE ASSESSMENT AREA TWO - PARCEL 
A-18 PROJECT AREA WITHIN THE DISTRICT SPECIALLY 
BENEFITED BY THE ASSESSMENT AREA TWO - PARCEL A-18 
PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS TO PAY THE COST THEREOF; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND THE COLLECTION OF 
SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BY THE METHODS PROVIDED 
FOR BY CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
CONFIRMING THE DISTRICT'S INTENTION TO ISSUE ITS 
SERIES 2024B BONDS; MAKING PROVISIONS FOR TRANSFERS 
OF REAL PROPERTY TO GOVERNMENTAL BODIES; 
PROVIDING FOR THE RECORDING OF AN ASSESSMENT 



 

Page 4 of 10 
 

NOTICE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-06, as presented. 
 
Mr. Pierman then closed the Public Hearing on the B Bonds and reconvened the Regular Board Meeting. 
 
I. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
J. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-07 – Authorizing Resolution 
 
Resolution No. 2024-07 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024–07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”) HEREBY 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING $5,000,000 AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, 
SERIES 2024A (PARCEL A-18 PROJECT) (THE “2024A BONDS”) AND THE 
ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING $12,000,000 AVENIR COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2024B 
(PARCEL A-18 PROJECT) (THE “2024B BONDS” AND, TOGETHER WITH 
THE 2024A BONDS, THE “2024 BONDS”), TO FINANCE CERTAIN PUBLIC 
INFRASTRUCTURE WITHIN ASSESSMENT AREA TWO OF THE DISTRICT 
REFERRED TO AS THE ASSESSMENT AREA TWO – PARCEL A-18 
PROJECT AREA; DETERMINING THE NEED FOR A NEGOTIATED 
LIMITED OFFERING OF THE 2024A BONDS AND A PRIVATE PLACEMENT 
OFFERING OF THE 2024B BONDS AND PROVIDING FOR A DELEGATED 
AWARD OF SUCH 2024B BONDS TO PHCC LLC D/B/A PRESTON HOLLOW 
COMMUNITY CAPITAL, OR ITS AFFILIATE (THE “PURCHASER”), 
PURSUANT TO THE COMMITMENT TO PURCHASE SUCH SERIES 2024B 
BONDS PROVIDED BY THE PURCHASER; APPOINTING THE PLACEMENT 
AGENT FOR THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF THE 2024B BONDS AND 
APPOINTING THE UNDERWRITER FOR THE LIMITED OFFERING OF THE 
2024A BONDS; APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND PURCHASE AND PLACEMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT TO THE 2024 BONDS; APPROVING THE 
FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 
ELEVENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE GOVERNING THE 2024A 
BONDS, AND A TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE 
GOVERNING THE 2024B BONDS; APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF THE 
MASTER TRUST INDENTURE DATED AS OF MAY 1, 2018 BY AND 
BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND REGIONS BANK, AS TRUSTEE WITH 
RESPECT TO THE 2024 BONDS; APPROVING THE FORM OF A 



 

Page 5 of 10 
 

PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FINAL LIMITED OFFERING 
MEMORANDUM; APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
AGREEMENT, AND APPOINTING A DISSEMINATION AGENT; 
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN MODIFICATIONS TO THE ASSESSMENT 
METHODOLOGY REPORTS AND ENGINEER’S REPORT; PROVIDING FOR 
THE REGISTRATION OF THE BONDS PURSUANT TO THE DTC BOOK-
ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM; AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS TO DO 
ALL THINGS DEEMED NECESSARY IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF THE 2024 BONDS; AND PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Sanford presented Resolution 2024-07, noting that it authorizes both A and B Bonds.  The A Bonds 
are being underwritten by FMS for an amount not to exceed $5,000,000; and the B Bonds are being 
privately placed for an amount not to exceed $12,000,000.  Mr. Sanford further explained the exhibits 
attached to the resolution, which are in substantially final form.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-07, in substantially final form. 
 
 2.  Consider Preliminary First Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report – 
Special Assessment Bonds Series 2024 A and Series 2024B for Assessment Area Two – Parce A-18 
Project 
 
Mr. Karmeris presented the First Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report, noting that the 
projected total improvement cost was $13,850,050.  He further highlighted the maximum debt and per 
unit costs.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
Preliminary First Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report – Parcel A-18 Project, as 
presented. 
 
 3.  Consider Ancillary Bond Documents 
 
Mr. Pawelczyk presented the ancillary bond documents, explaining that the Assignment & Assumption 
Agreement (Parcel A-18 Project) Form was a form document for assignment of infrastructure contracts 
already entered into by Kenco;  the Assignment and Acquisition Agreement (Parcel A-18 Project) states 
that the District will accept and pay for completed improvements; the Completion Agreement (Parcel A-
18 Project) states that Kenco agrees to pay for anything not funded by the bonds; the Collateral 
Assignment and Assumption of Development Rights states that, in the event of a default, the District can 
complete the project; the Declaration of Consent to Jurisdiction is signed by Kenco; the Lien of Record 
Form will be used for one or both the A and B Bonds, depending on what is needed for the public record; 
and True-Up Agreements for Series 2024A and Series 2024B were requested to be separate documents 
by Preston Hollow, and state that a true-up payment is required if fewer units are developed.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Horowitz and passed unanimously approving the 
ancillary bond documents, in substantially final form. 
 



 

Page 6 of 10 
 

 4.  Consider Waiver Request from PHCC 
 
Mr. Sanford explained that Parcel A-18 already had debt: A Debt is being paid off, but B Debt is still 
owned by Preston Hollow.  Because of this, consent from Preston Hollow is needed to issue additional 
debt.  Payments are to be allocated between A and B Debt, but later stop so only A Debt is being paid. 
Mr. Sanford noted that another request would be made for Parcel A-11. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Horowitz and unanimously passed approving the 
Waiver Request from PHCC, and authorizing an additional letter for Parcel A-11.  
 
 5.  Consider Agreement for Underwriter Services (FMS) (Parcel A-18 A Bonds – Limited 
Offering) 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that the FMS agreement for A-18 A Bonds authorizes FMS to act as underwriter.   
 
 6.  Consider Agreement for Underwriter Services (FMS) (Parcel A-18 B Bonds – Limited 
Offering) 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that the FMS agreement for A-18 B Bonds authorizes FMS to act as placement 
agent. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and unanimously passed approving both 
agreements with FMS.   
 
 7.  Consider ILA with County (Coconut Boulevard Mast Arm) 
 
Ms. McConnell explained that the County agreed to let the District out of the maintenance agreement.  
This agreement stipulates that the District will construct the improvement for $1,185,224.40, which gets 
the District away from maintaining the signal. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Horowitz and unanimously passed approving the 
agreement in substantially final form, and authorizing the Chair to assist with negotiations. 
 
 8.  Consider Grade Crossing Maintenance Agreement (CSXT) 
 
Ms. McConnell presented the agreement with CSX, noting that it was subject to final comments.  The 
agreement calls for a $5,000 annual payment, plus maintenance costs.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
Grade Crossing Maintenance Agreement, subject to final comments. 
 
 9.  Consider Reimbursement Agreement for Verizon Relocates 
 
Ms. McConnell explained that the District requires Verizon to relocate their lines for a cost of 
$420,540.58.  Mr. Pawelczyk noted that the District needs Verizon’s COI.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
Reimbursement Agreement for Verizon relocates, as presented. 
 



 

Page 7 of 10 
 

 10.  Consider Northlake Boulevard Interim Driveway Connection Road Infrastructure 
Contract (H&J) 
 
Mr. Ballbe presented the Northlake Boulevard Interim Driveway Connection Road Infrastructure 
Contract with H&J, noting that it was to temporarily connect Panther National to Northlake at cost of 
$220,324.00.    
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
Northlake Boulevard Interim Driveway Connection Road Infrastructure Contract with H&J, as 
presented. 
  
K. CHANGE ORDERS 
 
Mr. Pierman noted that the Board could approve all change order as one motion. 
 
 1.  Consider Ratification of Change Order No. 6 – JW Cheatham ($77,982.65) 
 
Ms. McConnell explained that Change Order No. 6 was for the eastern Phase 2 project, for additional 
asphalt work and striping, and underground utilities, in the amount of $77,982.65.  
 
 2.  Consider Ratification of JW Cheatham NL Ph 1 CO 2 ($20,762.00) 
 
Ms. McConnell explained that Change Order No. 2 was for irrigation repairs in the amount of 
$20,762.00. 
 
 3.  Consider Ratification of JW Cheatham NL Ph1 CO 3 ($8,288.00) 
 
Ms. McConnell explained that Change Order No. 3 was for a new fire hydrant in the amount of 
$8,288.00.   
 
 4.  Consider Ratification of JW Cheatham NL Ph 1 CO 4 ($45,145.00) 
 
Ms. McConnell explained that Change Order No. 4 was for temporary lighting at the Town Center in the 
amount of $45,145.00.  
 
 5.  Consider Centerline Phase Spine Road Phase 4 – CO 9 ($594,294.32) 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that Change Order No. 9 was for asphalt escalation and entrance revisions in the 
amount of $594,294.32. 
 
 6.  Consider Spine Road 5 – SPF Contract – CO 1 ($297,331.05) 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that Change Order No. 1 was for conduit, trenching, box removal, transformer tie 
in and trenching to the switch cabinet in the amount of $297,331.05.   
 
 7.  Consider Spine Road 5 – SPF Contract CO 2 ($9,511.38) 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that Change Order No. 2 was to lower fever cable and traffic signal work in the 
amount of $9,511.38.  



 

Page 8 of 10 
 

 8.  Consider Spine Road Phase 5 – Arazoza Contract CO 2 ($132,782.50) 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that Change Order No. 2 was for landscape plan revisions in the amount of 
$132,782.50. 
 
 9.  Consider Spine Road Phase 5 – Arazoza Contract CO 3 ($1,256,695.41) 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that Change Order No. 5 was for irrigation final plans that were not finalized at the 
time of the contract in the amount of $1,256,695.41. 
 
 10.  Consider Spine Road Phase 6 – Arazoza CO 1 ($478,421.52) 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that Change Order No. 6 goes along with Change Order No. 5 for irrigation work 
in the amount of $478,421.52. 
 
 11.  Consider Phase Two Earthwork Contract – H&J CO 18 ($77,012.60) 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that Change Order No. 18 was for earthwork west of Coconut Boulevard and lake 
bank remediation in Pod 10 in the amount of $77,012.60. 
 
 12.  Consider Phase Two Earthwork Contract – H&J CO 19 ($77,833.00) 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that Change Order No. 19 was for erosion control and cart path repairs in the 
amount of $77,833.00.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Horowitz and unanimously passed approving the 
Change Orders, as presented. 
 
L. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Consider Ratification of Caulfield Pod 16 Agreement  
2. Consider Ratification of FPL Agreement (Underground Distribution Facilities 

Installation)  
3. Consider Ratification of Patterson Electrical Consulting  
4. CA4 Consider Ratification of Caulfield & Wheeler A10- Ph 1 & 2 SUA E 
5. Consider Ratification of Caulfield & Wheeler A21- Ph 1 & 2 SUA E 
6. Consider Ratification of Pod 6 - Phase 3 - Amended and Restated Landscape 

Maintenance Easement  
7. Consider Ratification of Pulte - Pod 6 - Phase 3 - Amended and Restated Maintenance 

Agreement  
8. Consider Ratification of Pulte - Pod 6 - Phase 3 - Irrigation and Access Easement 
9. Consider Ratification of Pulte - Pod 6 - Phase 3 - Lake Interconnect Easement 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and unanimously passed approving Consent 
Agenda items 1 through 9, as presented. 
 
M. CLUBHOUSE 
 1.  Clubhouse Management Update 
 



 

Page 9 of 10 
 

Mr. Salvatore advised that the gym access project had been completed and that the gym was now open 
from 5:00 a.m. until midnight.  He also explained that there was additional electrical work needed for 
the tennis court access project and presented proposals for the work. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Horowitz, seconded by Mr. Lopez and unanimously passed accepting the 
proposal from Mister Sparky in the amount of $15,025.00 and further authorizing staff to create an 
agreement. 
 
Mr. Salvatore also noted that the landscaping around the clubhouse was rapidly deteriorating due to the 
lack of gutters on the building and recommended adding them.  Following discussion, it was suggested 
that Mr. Salvatore discuss it with the architects before moving forward.  
 
Mr. Salvatore presented landscaping proposals for the tot lot in the amount of $7,930, as well as irrigation 
changes in the amount of $1,040. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Horowitz, seconded by Mr. Lopez and unanimously passed accepting the 
proposals with the irrigation work approval subject to confirmation that it is needed. 
 
Ms. Chiaramonte highlighted the events held at the Clubhouse over the past month.   
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Engaging a Clubhouse Construction Consultant 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that, due to a slip and fall report at the Clubhouse, he was exploring engaging a 
construction consultant to verify the Clubhouse’s construction.  The recommendation that he was given 
did not respond, so he will explore other options.  Following discussion, the Board recommended 
contacting the architect to find out what materials were specified.   
 
N. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Landscape Maintenance Agreement 
 
Mr. Pierman noted that the Landscape Maintenance Agreement expires in September and explained that 
it would be beneficial to start the RFP process now so numbers would be available for the budget.  The 
Board agreed and directed staff to publish an RFP for Landscape Maintenance Services.   
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Lake Maintenance Easement Access 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that he had been contacted by a resident inquiring about the possibility of 
obtaining temporary use of the lake bank for the purpose of pool construction.  He noted that Mr. 
Pawelczyk had provided a resolution that was used in other districts that would allow for this.  Following 
discussion, the Board directed staff to bring the resolution back to the Board for consideration, and a 
motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez granting a temporary easement for the 
resident, should it be requested.   
 
Mr. Pierman noted that the next meeting would be held on May 23, 2024.   
 
O. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 



 

Page 10 of 10 
 

P. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Horowitz, 
seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 1:40 p.m.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  _________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice-Chair 



RESOLUTION 2024-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING THE 
PROCESS FOR REQUESTING TEMPORARY 
ACCESS OVER DISTRICT PROPERTY FOR 
LANDOWNER IMPROVEMETNS; PROVIDING FOR 
A PROCESSING FEE FOR THE COSTS INCURRED 
BY THE DISTRICT; AUTHORIZING THE DISTRICT 
MANAGER OR IN HIS OR HER ABSENCE, THE 
CHAIR OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS TO APPROVE AND EXECUTE 
TEMPORARY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENTS 
WITH LANDOWNERS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Avenir Community Development District (the "District") is a local unit of special 
purpose government created and existing under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the District has received requests from landowners within the District for approval of 
temporary access over and through District property so that landowners can undertake improvements to 
their property; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to provide for a procedure for the receipt, review and determination 
of the request by landowners on an expedited basis; and 

WHEREAS, the District incurs costs of approximately $300 for the review, research, preparation 
and execution of the requested temporary access easement agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors determined that it is in the best interest District and 
its landowners that the District Manager of the District, or in his or her absence, the Chair of the District 
Board of Supervisors review and approve temporary access easement agreements on behalf of the District 
pursuant to a specific procedure. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY  
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, THAT: 

               Section 1. The foregoing recitals clauses are true and correct and are hereby 
incorporated into this Resolution by reference. 

     Section 2. The District hereby approves the following procedure for requests from landowners 
for temporary access on and through the District property by landowners and their agents (collectively, the 
“Landowners”): 

a. Landowner provides the District Manager of the Avenir Community Development District 
with the written approval from the applicable Homeowner’s Association for the proposed improvements to 
Landowner property; 

 



b. Landowner provides the District Manager with a detailed description of the proposed work 
to be performed for the improvements and the estimated time for construction; 

c. Landowner provides the District Manager with a sketch or drawing of the location of the 
District property that landowner is seeking the temporary access easement over; 

d. Landowner provides the District Manager proof of ownership of the Landowner property; 
e. Landowner pays a fee of $300 made payable to the Avenir Community Development District 

for the review, preparation and execution of the temporary access agreement; and 
f. The District Manager authorizes District Counsel to prepare the temporary access easement 

agreement upon verification that the above items have been satisfied by Landowner. 
 
Section 3.      That the District Manager, and in his or her absence, the Chairman of the District 

Board of Supervisors, is hereby authorized to act on behalf of the District and review and approve the 
temporary access easement agreements prepared by District Counsel as forth herein. 
 

Section 4. The legal form of each temporary access easement agreement executed pursuant to 
this Resolution shall be acceptable to the District Counsel of the District, in his or her discretion, subject to 
Board direction. 

Section 5. The proper District officials are hereby authorized and directed to take all steps 
necessary to effectuate the intent of this Resolution. 

 Section 6.  All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict. 

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption. 

 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District at its regularly scheduled 
meeting this 23rd day of May, 2024. 

ATTEST:  AVENIR COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

__________________________   ____________________________ 
Jason Pierman, Secretary   Virginia Cepero, Chair 
      Board of Supervisors 
 



Company Lawn Service Fertilization  Irrigation Total

Yellowstone 574,956.91$       167,973.30$    95,917.92$     838,848.13$      

Arazoza 1,028,647.23$    194,999.99$    150,000.00$   1,373,647.22$   

CPM 931,501.00$       354,416.00$    138,126.00$   1,424,043.00$   

Brightview 1,106,752.27$    225,450.87$    189,372.09$   1,521,575.23$   

Company Lawn Service Fertilization  Irrigation Total

Yellowstone 54,359.28$         14,513.12$      2,204.80$        71,077.20$        

CPM 47,532.00$         17,163.00$      7,200.00$        71,895.00$        

Arazoza 68,510.00$         12,000.00$      7,920.00$        88,430.00$        

Brightview 65,010.00$         13,002.00$      5,070.00$        83,082.00$        

General Area

Clubhouse

Landscape Maintenance & Irrigation RFP Responses
(Bids were opened publicly on May 20, 2024)



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-09 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED 
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Avenir Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for August 22, 2024 at 12:30 p.m. at 
the offices of Special District Services, Inc., 2501A Burns Rd., Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410, 
for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 23rd day of May, 2024.  
 

 
ATTEST: AVENIR 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 Avenir
   Community Development District

Proposed Budget
      Fiscal Year 2024/2025

      October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025



CONTENTS

I PROPOSED BUDGET

II DETAILED PROPOSED BUDGET

III DETAILED PROPOSED CLUBHOUSE BUDGET

IV DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2018)

V DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2019)

VI DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2020)

VII DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2021)

VIII DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2023)

IX DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2024)

X ASSESSMENT COMPARISON - PARCELS A-1 - A-5

XI ASSESSMENT COMPARISON - PARCELS A-6 - A-9

XII ASSESSMENT COMPARISON - PARCELS A-10 - A-21



PROPOSED BUDGET
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025
OCTOBER 1, 2024 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

FISCAL YEAR 
2024/2025

REVENUES BUDGET

O&M Assessments 4,965,806
Clubhouse Assessments 1,739,655
Total Regular Debt Assessments 15,595,194
Total Cap I + B Bond Debt Assess 1,809,035
Landowner Contribution - O&M 0
Landowner Contribution - Clubhouse 0
Landowner Contribution - Debt 0
Impact Fees 6,484,553
Bond Prepayments 0
Bond Prepayments - Sent to Trustee 0
O&M Interest & Other Income 1
Clubhouse Interest & Other Income 55,000

TOTAL REVENUES 30,649,244$                                                                                                  

EXPENDITURES

Supervisor Fees 3,840
Supervisor Fees Taxes 308
Engineering/Inspections 20,000
Management 56,285
Legal 48,000
Assessment Roll 6,000
Audit Fees 13,700
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 4,200
Insurance 66,000
Legal Advertisements 5,000
Miscellaneous 2,000
Postage 750
Office Supplies 2,000
Dues & Subscriptions 175
Trustee Fees 35,000
Continuing Disclosure Fee 3,000
Website Management 1,600
Appraisal Fee 0
Infrastructure Maintenance 100,000
Miscellaneous Maintenance 50,000
Base Landscape Maintenance 1,310,000
Optional Landscape Maintenance 350,000
Irrigation Maintenance 140,000
Lake Maintenance 250,000
Littorals 75,000
Fountain Maintenenace 100,000
Stormwater / Lake Water Control 0
Street Sweeping / Pressure Washing 200,000
Mitigation Maintenance 720,000
Trail Maintenance 0
Wild Hog Control 0
Pump Station Maintenance / Fuel 100,000
Electric (FPL) (Including Streetlight) 650,000
Water (Seacoast) 150,000
Field Operations 55,000
Contingency 150,000

Clubhouse Total Expenditures 1,690,276

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,358,134$                                                                                                    

REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES 24,291,110$                                                                                                  

Bond Payments - Series 2018 (2,995,460)
Bond Payments - Series 2019 (1,278,335)
Bond Payments - Series 2020 (IF) (6,484,553)
Bond Payments - Series 2021 (4,850,154)
Bond Payments - Series 2023 (6,583,756)
Bond Payments - Series 2024 (760,813)

BALANCE 2,098,852$                                                                                                    

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee (446,013)
Discounts For Early Payments (892,026)

EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) 760,813$                                                                                                       

I



DETAILED PROPOSED BUDGET
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025
OCTOBER 1, 2023 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

O&M Assessments 1,974,787 3,865,793 4,965,806 Total Regular Expenses / .94

Clubhouse Assessments 1,609,282 1,745,718 1,739,655 Total CH Expenses - Revenue / .94

Total Regular Debt Assessments 5,105,569 10,802,375 15,595,194

Total Cap I + B Bond Debt Assess 16,619,616 4,404,531 1,809,035

Landowner Contribution - O&M 295,000 0 0

Landowner Contribution - Clubhouse 0 0 0

Landowner Contribution - Debt 0 0 0

Impact Fees 5,550,148 5,582,400 6,484,553 Estimated

Bond Prepayments 0 0 0

Bond Prepayments - Sent to Trustee 0 0 0

O&M Interest & Other Income 40,083 0 1

Clubhouse Interest & Other Income 42,292 69,000 55,000 Rental 30,000  + Memb 25,000

TOTAL REVENUES 31,236,776$    26,469,817$     30,649,244$      

EXPENDITURES

Supervisor Fees 0 0 3,840

Supervisor Fees Taxes 0 308

Engineering/Inspections 0 15,000 20,000

Management 52,820 54,645 56,285 CPI Adjustment

Legal 47,545 48,000 48,000

Assessment Roll 6,000 6,000 6,000

Audit Fees 6,187 6,600 13,700 Increase due to Additional Bonds

Arbitrage Rebate Fee 3,675 3,025 4,200

Insurance 20,453 30,000 66,000 Insurance Estimate

Legal Advertisements 4,867 3,300 5,000

Miscellaneous 5,256 2,000 2,000

Postage 511 750 750

Office Supplies 2,380 3,500 2,000

Dues & Subscriptions 175 175 175

Trustee Fees 17,500 31,500 35,000

Continuing Disclosure Fee 2,750 2,750 3,000

Website Management 1,600 1,600 1,600

Appraisal Fee 0 0 0

Infrastructure Maintenance 39,699 100,000 100,000

Miscellaneous Maintenance 24,157 80,000 50,000

Base Landscape Maintenance 706,000 775,000 1,310,000

Optional Landscape Maintenance 149,273 350,000 350,000

Irrigation Maintenance 38,693 50,000 140,000

Lake Maintenance 61,007 250,000 250,000

Littorals 0 75,000 75,000

Fountain Maintenenace 89,735 50,000 100,000

Stormwater / Lake Water Control 159,257 0 0 Pumps

Street Sweeping / Pressure Washing 72,100 100,000 200,000

Mitigation Maintenance 88,000 720,000 720,000

Trail Maintenance 0 5,000 0

Wild Hog Control 0 15,000 0

Pump Station Maintenance / Fuel 25,960 100,000 100,000

Electric (FPL) (Including Streetlight) 407,823 400,000 650,000 Streetlight & electric

Water (Seacoast) 143,572 150,000 150,000

Field Operations 0 55,000 55,000

Contingency 0 150,000 150,000

Clubhouse Total Expenditures 1,306,864 1,709,975 1,690,276

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,483,858$      5,343,820$       6,358,134$        

REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES 27,752,918$    12,092,893$     24,291,110$      

Bond Payments - Series 2018 (5,656,810) (3,000,462) (2,995,460) 2025 P & I Payments Less Earned Interest

Bond Payments - Series 2019 (3,409,944) (1,428,335) (1,278,335) 2025 P & I Payments Less Earned Interest

Bond Payments - Series 2020 (IF) (5,550,148) (5,582,400) (6,484,553) Estimated

Bond Payments - Series 2021 (12,502,562) (4,880,154) (4,850,154) 2025 P & I Payments Less Earned Interest

Bond Payments - Series 2023 0 (5,249,813) (6,583,756) 2025 P & I Payments Less Earned Interest

Bond Payments - Series 2024 0 0 (760,813) 2025 P & I Payments Less Earned Interest

BALANCE 633,454$         861,237$          1,338,039$        

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee (29,584) (328,278) (446,013)

Discounts For Early Payments (212,402) (656,555) (892,026)

EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) 391,469$         -$                      -$                      

II



DETAILED PROPOSED CLUBHOUSE BUDGET
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025
OCTOBER 1, 2024 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Supervisor Fees 0 0 960

Supervisor Fees Taxes 0 77

Connect Water Fee 0 0 0

CDD Management 8,000 8,000 8,000

Legal 11,886 12,000 12,000

Assessment Roll 1,500 1,500 1,500

Audit Fees 1,313 1,400 1,600

Arbitrage Rebate Fee 225 225 225

Legal Advertisements 1,710 1,200 1,500

Trustee Fees 3,500 3,500 3,500

Continuing Disclosure Fee 250 250 250

Website Management 400 400 400

CH Management/personnel 570,258 686,000 758,801

Uniforms 1,717 4,000 4,000

Licenses/Permits 950 5,000 5,000

Insurance 60,627 70,000 55,000

Post / Print / Office Sup 7,329 9,000 9,000

IT / Telecom 8,942 20,000 20,000

HVAC Maint & Repair 3,002 12,000 12,000

Janitorial 2,674 13,500 11,000

Misc Repair & Maint 48,676 60,000 60,000

Pest Control 14,668 18,000 18,000

Fire/ Life/ Hood -Safe Sys 9,605 6,000 8,000

Fitness Equip 6,377 4,000 4,000

Vehicle Lease & Maint 0 1,500 5,000

Holiday Decorations 3,567 15,000 15,000

Cable / Music Services 2,238 3,000 3,000

Trash Removal 2,985 6,000 6,000

Gas 25,424 50,000 50,000

Electricity 38,078 50,000 50,000

Water & Sewer 35,234 40,000 40,000

Irrigation Water 12,459 13,000 10,000

Security / Camera Surveillance 87,577 90,000 90,000

Electronic Access Control 3,739 5,000 10,000

Surveillance Repair & Main 0 3,000 0

Landscape Maint Contract 73,296 90,000 80,000

Landscape Other / Irrigation 56,654 100,000 40,000

Pool Chemicals 51,244 55,000 55,000

Pool Maintenance Agreement 32,500 32,500 32,500

Pool Repair & Misc Maint 4,492 25,000 25,000

Tennis & Pickle Court Main 7,763 15,000 15,000

Furniture Repair & Maint 0 5,000 5,000

Social Programs 87,403 75,000 90,000

Restaurant Expenses 0 0 0

Deficit Funding F&B Operat 0 0 0

Other / Capital Expenses 18,600 100,000 75,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,306,864$      1,709,975$       1,690,276$        

III



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2018
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025
OCTOBER 1, 2024 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Interest Income 104,696 200 200 Projected Interest 

Net NAV Collection 2018-1 2,346,705 2,098,851 2,098,851 Maximum Net Debt Service Collection

Net Collection 2018-2 (Taxable & Tax-Exempt) 3,096,734 89,750 84,748 Estimate - Collected from Developer / Home Builder

Net NAV Collection 2018-3 884,566 811,861 811,861 Maximum Net Debt Service Collection

Landowner Contribution 0 0 0

Prepaid Bond Collections 28,694 0 0

Total Revenues 6,461,395$                          3,000,662$                   2,995,660$                   

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 2018-1 490,000 520,000 545,000 Principal Payment Due In 2024

Principal Payments 2018-2 Taxable 2,275,000 0 0 Bonds Paid off as lots sold to Homebuilder

Principal Payments 2018-2 TE 580,000 0 0 Bonds Paid off as lots sold to Homebuilder

Principal Payments 2018-3 200,000 185,000 200,000 Principal Payment Due In 2024

Interest Payments 2018-1 1,621,950 1,580,700 1,551,413 Interest Payments Due In 2024

Interest Payments 2018-2 Taxable 226,730 71,500 71,000 Estimated Interest Payments Due In 2024

Interest Payments 2018-2 TE 43,144 18,250 13,748 Estimated Interest Payments Due In 2024

Interest Payments 2018-3 638,322 622,581 610,075 Interest Payments Due In 2024

Bond Redemptions 0 2,631 4,425 Estimated Excess Debt Collections

Total Expenditures 6,075,146$                          3,000,662$                   2,995,660$                   

Excess/ (Shortfall) 386,250$                             -$                                 -$                                  

Original Par Amount = $31,500,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 5.50% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = May 2018

Maturity Date = May 2049

Original Par Amount = $18,445,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = Paid as Lots Sold to Home Builders

Interest Rate = 7.90% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = May 2018

Maturity Date = May 2029 NOTE: These Bonds are paid off as lot are sold to Home Builders

Original Par Amount = $4,700,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = Paid as Lots Sold to Home Builders

Interest Rate = 5.85% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = May 2018

Maturity Date = May 2029 NOTE: These Bonds are paid off as lot are sold to Home Builders

Original Par Amount = $11,565,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 5.75% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = May 2018

Maturity Date = May 2049

Series 2018-1 Bond Information

Series 2018-2 Taxable Bond Information

Series 2018-2 Tax Exempt (TE) Bond Information

Series 2018-3 Bond Information

IV  



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2019
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025
OCTOBER 1, 2024 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Interest Income 59,908 200 200 Projected Interest 

Net NAV Tax Collection 894,931 1,078,335 1,078,335 Maximum Net Debt Service Collection

Net NAV Tax Collection B 2,535,666 350,000 200,000 Estimate - Collected from Developer / Home Builder

Landowner Contribution 0 0 0

Prepaid Bonds 101,589 0 0

Total Revenues 3,592,094$                    1,428,535$                1,278,535$             

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 330,000 245,000 255,000 Principal Payments Due In 2024

Principal Payments B 2,170,000 0 0

Interest Payments 853,160 835,660 810,740 Interest Payments Due In 2024

Interest Payments B 335,128 350,000 200,000 Estimated Interest Payments Due in 2024

Bond Redemptions 0 -2,125 12,795 Estimated Excess Debt Collections

Total Expenditures 3,688,288$                    1,428,535$                1,278,535$             

Excess/ (Shortfall) (96,194)$                        -$                              -$                            

Original Par Amount = $15,700,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 5.60% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = April 2019

Maturity Date = May 2050

Original Par Amount = $2,200,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = Paid as Lots Sold to Home Builders

Interest Rate = 6.875% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = December 2019

Maturity Date = May 2029

Original Par Amount = $4,300,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = Paid as Lots Sold to Home Builders

Interest Rate = 5.250% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = December 2019

Maturity Date = May 2029

Series 2019 Bond Information

Series 2019 B Taxable Bond Information

Series 2019 B Tax Exempt (TE) Bond Information

V  



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2020
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025
OCTOBER 1, 2024 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Interest Income 53,729 0 0 Projected Interest 

Impact Fees 5,553,652 5,582,400 6,484,553 Paid As Impact Fee Credits Are Earned

Total Revenues 5,607,381$                    5,582,400$                6,484,553$             

EXPENDITURES

Impact Fee Principal Payments 3,851,000 4,535,000 5,622,000 Principal Payments Happen Based on Collections

Impact Fee Interest Payments 1,002,416 1,047,400 862,553 Estimated Interest Payments Due In 2024

Total Expenditures 4,853,416$                    5,582,400$                6,484,553$             

Excess/ (Shortfall) 753,964$                       -$                              -$                            

Original Par Amount = $22,600,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = Paid as Impact Fee Credits Are Earned

Interest Rate = 4.75% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = July 2020

Maturity Date = November 2050

Series 2020 Bond Information

VI  



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2021
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025
OCTOBER 1, 2024 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Interest Income 252,388 200 200 Projected Interest 

Net NAV Collection 2021 A-1 & A-2 2,953,960 3,999,654 3,999,654 Maximum Net Debt Service Collection

Net Collection 2021 B 13,054,382 880,500 850,500 Maximum Net Debt Service Collection

Landowner Contribution 0 0 0

Capitalized Interest 0 0 0

Total Revenues 16,260,730$                        4,880,354$                   4,850,354$                   

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 2021 A-1 600,000 590,000 605,000 Principal Payment Due In 2024

Principal Payments 2021 A-2 600,000 595,000 625,000 Principal Payment Due In 2024

Principal Payments 2021 B 11,700,000 0 0 Bonds Paid off as lots sold to Homebuilder

Interest Payments 2021 A-1 862,572 842,798 829,354 Interest Payments Due In 2024

Interest Payments 2021 A-2 2,014,830 1,970,718 1,938,916 Interest Payments Due In 2024

Interest Payments 2021 B 1,502,688 880,500 850,500 Estimated Interest Payments Due In 2024

Bond Redemptions 0 1,338 1,585 Estimated Excess Debt Collections

Total Expenditures 17,280,089$                        4,880,354$                   4,850,354$                   

Excess/ (Shortfall) (1,019,359)$                        -$                                 -$                                  

Original Par Amount = $27,305,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 3.299% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = September 2021

Maturity Date = May 2052

Original Par Amount = $39,305,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = Paid as Lots Sold to Home Builders

Interest Rate = 5.125% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = September 2021

Maturity Date = May 2052

Original Par Amount = $29,160,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = N/A

Interest Rate = 5.00% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = September 2021

Maturity Date = May 2041

Series 2021 A-1 Bond Information

Series 2021 A-2 Bond Information

Series 2021 B Bond Information

VII  



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2023
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025
OCTOBER 1, 2024 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Interest Income 0 200 200 Projected Interest 

Net NAV Collection 2023 0 2,165,531 5,445,825 Maximum Net Debt Service Collection

Net NAV Collection 2023 TC 0 0 1,137,931 Maximum Net Debt Service Collection

Landowner Contribution 0 0 0

Capitalized Interest 3,607,411 3,084,281 0

Total Revenues 3,607,411$                          5,250,013$                   6,583,956$                   

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 2023 0 0 1,140,000 Principal Payment Due In 2025

Principal Payments 2023 TC 0 0 0 Principal Payment Due In 2025

Interest Payments 2023 3,260,328 4,331,063 4,305,413 Interest Payments Due In 2025

Interest Payments 2023 TC 347,083 918,750 918,750 Interest Payments Due In 2025

Bond Redemptions 0 200 219,794 Estimated Excess Debt Collections

Total Expenditures 3,607,411$                          5,250,013$                   6,583,956$                   

Excess/ (Shortfall) -$                                        -$                                 -$                                  

Original Par Amount = $79,750,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 5.537% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = January 2023

Maturity Date = May 2054

Original Par Amount = $15,000,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 6.125% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = June 2023

Maturity Date = May 2054

Series 2023 Bond Information

Series 2023 Town Center Bond Information

VIII  



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2024
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025
OCTOBER 1, 2024 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Interest Income 0 0 200 Projected Interest 

Net NAV Collection 2024 A 0 0 87,225 Maximum Net Debt Service Collection

Net NAV Collection 2024 B 0 0 0 Maximum Net Debt Service Collection

Landowner Contribution 0 0 0

Capitalized Interest 0 0 673,788

Total Revenues -$                                        -$                                 761,213$                      

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 2024 A 0 0 Principal Payment Due In 2024

Principal Payments 2024 B 0 0 0 Principal Payment Due In 2024

Interest Payments 2024 A 0 0 174,450 Interest Payments Due In 2024

Interest Payments 2024 B 0 0 586,563 Interest Payments Due In 2024

Bond Redemptions 0 0 200 Estimated Excess Debt Collections

Total Expenditures -$                                        -$                                 761,213$                      

Excess/ (Shortfall) -$                                        -$                                 -$                                  

Original Par Amount = $3,000,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 5.815% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = April 2024

Maturity Date = May 2055

Original Par Amount = $9,385,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 6.250% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = April 2024

Maturity Date = May 2055

Series 2024 A Bond Information

Series 2024 B Bond Information

IX  



 Avenir Community Development District
Assessment Comparison (Parcels A-1 -  A-5)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

Gross Gross Gross Projected Gross
 Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-1 - Watermark 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              $1,085.45
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-1 1,352.71$                                           1,370.47$                                           1,486.98$                                           1,481.82$                                                           

Debt (2018-1) Assessment For Parcel A-1 2,077.13$                                           2,077.13$                                           2,077.13$                                           2,077.13$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-1 742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                                              

Total 4,995.74$                                           5,152.07$                                           5,150.01$                                           5,386.40$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-2 - LaTerre 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-2 1,352.71$                                           1,370.47$                                           1,486.98$                                           1,481.82$                                                           

Debt (2018-1) Assessment For Parcel A-2 1,982.71$                                           1,982.71$                                           1,982.71$                                           1,982.71$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-2 742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                                              

Total 4,901.32$                                           5,057.65$                                           5,055.59$                                           5,291.98$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-3 - Windgate 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-3 1,352.71$                                           1,370.47$                                           1,486.98$                                           1,481.82$                                                           

Debt (2018-1) Assessment For Parcel A-3 1,888.30$                                           1,888.30$                                           1,888.30$                                           1,888.30$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-3 742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                                              

Total 4,806.91$                                           4,963.24$                                           4,961.18$                                           5,197.57$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-4 - Coral Isles 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-4 1,352.71$                                           1,370.47$                                           1,486.98$                                           1,481.82$                                                           

Debt (2018-1) Assessment For Parcel A-4 2,171.54$                                           2,171.54$                                           2,171.54$                                           2,171.54$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-4 742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                                              

Total 5,090.15$                                           5,246.48$                                           5,244.42$                                           5,480.81$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-5 (50 Foot) - Regency 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-5 (50 Foot) -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                                    

Debt (2018-1) Assessment For Parcel A-5 (50 Foot) 1,888.30$                                           1,888.30$                                           1,888.30$                                           1,888.30$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-5 (50 Foot) -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                                    

Total 2,712.20$                                           2,850.77$                                           2,732.20$                                           2,973.75$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-5 (60 Foot) 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-5 (60 Foot) -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                                    

Debt (2018-1) Assessment For Parcel A-5 (60 Foot) 1,982.71$                                           1,982.71$                                           1,982.71$                                           1,982.71$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-5 (60 Foot) -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                                    

Total 2,806.61$                                           2,945.18$                                           2,826.61$                                           3,068.16$                                                           

O&M Assessment For S.F. Villas 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For S.F. Villas 1,352.71$                                           1,370.47$                                           1,486.98$                                           1,481.82$                                                           

Debt (2018-1) Assessment For S.F. Villas 1,063.83$                                           1,063.83$                                           1,063.83$                                           1,063.83$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For S.F. Villas 742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                                              

Total 3,982.44$                                           4,138.77$                                           4,136.71$                                           4,373.10$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Econ Dev 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Econ Dev -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                                    

Debt (2018-1) Assessment For Econ Dev 2,127.66$                                           2,127.66$                                           2,127.66$                                           2,127.66$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Econ Dev -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                   -$                                                                    

Total 2,951.56$                                           3,090.13$                                           2,971.56$                                           3,213.11$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Town Center - Total 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              94,347.31$                                                         
Debt (2018-1) Assessment For Town Center - Total 2,127.66$                                           2,127.66$                                           -$                                                   112,765.96$                                                       

Debt (2023 Towncenter)  Assessment For Town Center - Total -$                                                   -$                                                   2,127.66$                                           1,210,565.00$                                                    
Total 2,951.56$                                           3,090.13$                                           2,971.56$                                           1,417,678.27$                                                    

* Assessments Include the Following :
4% Discount for Early Payments 
1% County Tax Collector Fee
1% County Property Appraiser Fee

First Phase Second Phase Third Phase
Parcel A-1 98 Parcel A-6 245 Parcel A-10 172
Parcel A-2 92 Parcel A-7 47 Parcel A-11 101
Parcel A-3 119 Parcel A-8 98 Parcel A-12 139
Parcel A-4 107 Parcel A-9 118 Parcel A-13/14 125' 55
Parcel A-5 267 Total Second Phase 508 Parcel A-13/14 175' 24
Parcel A-5 202 Parcel A-15 50' 358
SF Villas 250 Parcel A-15 62' 204

First Phase Residential 1,135 Parcel A-16 50' 283
Parcel A-16 60' 208

Econ Dev (50 Acres) 82 Parcel A-17 125
Town Center (53 Acres) 86.92 Parcel A-18 104

First Phase Non-Residential 168.92 Parcel A-19 135
Parcel A-20 55' 75

Total First Phase 1,304 Parcel A-20 65' 69
Parcel A-21 128

Third Phase Residential 2,180

Golf Course 356.81
Charter School 11.91

Comm Parcel "D" 159.80
Comm Parcel "H" 18.75
Comm Parcel "J" 35.67

Third Phase Non-Residential 583

Total Third Phase 2,763

TOTAL UNITS O&M per Unit
Phase 1 1,304
Phase 2 508 $4,965,806 / 4,575 $1,085.45
Phase 3 2,763

Total Units 4,575

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL UNITS
Phase 1 1,135
Phase 2 508
Phase 3 2,180

Total Units 3,823

TOTALCLUBHOUSE UNITS Clubhouse Operation per Unit
Phase 1 666
Phase 2 508 $1,739,655 / 1,174 $1,481.82

Total Units 1,174

     Note: Parcel A-5, Econ Dev, Town Center, and Phase 3 are Not Assessed For
     Clubhouse Assessment  - They Receives No Special Benefit

Total Gross O&M Expenses / Total O&M Units = 

Total Gross Clubhouse Operation Expenses / Total Clubhouse Units = 

Lot Count Information

O&M Calculations

X  



 Avenir Community Development District
Assessment Comparison (Parcels A-6 -  A-9)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

Gross Gross Gross Projected Gross
 Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-6 - Pulte 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-6 1,352.71$                                           1,370.47$                                           1,486.98$                                           1,481.82$                                                           

Debt (2019) Assessment For Parcel A-6 2,322.00$                                           2,322.00$                                           2,322.00$                                           2,322.00$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-6 742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                                              

Total 5,240.61$                                           5,396.94$                                           5,394.88$                                           5,631.27$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-7 - Pulte 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-7 1,352.71$                                           1,370.47$                                           1,486.98$                                           1,481.82$                                                           

Debt (2019) Assessment For Parcel A-7 2,554.00$                                           2,554.00$                                           2,554.00$                                           2,554.00$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-7 742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                                              

Total 5,472.61$                                           5,628.94$                                           5,626.88$                                           5,863.27$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-8 - Pulte 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-8 1,352.71$                                           1,370.47$                                           1,486.98$                                           1,481.82$                                                           

Debt (2019) Assessment For Parcel A-8 2,554.00$                                           2,554.00$                                           2,554.00$                                           2,554.00$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-8 742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                                              

Total 5,472.61$                                           5,628.94$                                           5,626.88$                                           5,863.27$                                                           

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-9 - Solana 823.90$                                              962.47$                                              843.90$                                              1,085.45$                                                           
Clubhouse Operation Assessment For Parcel A-9 1,352.71$                                           1,370.47$                                           1,486.98$                                           1,481.82$                                                           

Debt (2019) Assessment For Parcel A-9 1,983.00$                                           1,983.00$                                           1,697.31$                                           1,697.31$                                                           
Debt (2018-3 Clubhouse)  Assessment For Parcel A-9 742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                              742.00$                                                              

Total 4,901.61$                                           5,057.94$                                           4,770.19$                                           5,006.58$                                                           

* Assessments Include the Following :
4% Discount for Early Payments 
1% County Tax Collector Fee
1% County Property Appraiser Fee

First Phase Second Phase Third Phase
Parcel A-1 98 Parcel A-6 245 Parcel A-10 172
Parcel A-2 92 Parcel A-7 47 Parcel A-11 101
Parcel A-3 119 Parcel A-8 98 Parcel A-12 139
Parcel A-4 107 Parcel A-9 118 Parcel A-13/14 125' 55
Parcel A-5 267 Total Second Phase 508 Parcel A-13/14 175' 24
Parcel A-5 202 Parcel A-15 50' 358
SF Villas 250 Parcel A-15 62' 204

First Phase Residential 1,135 Parcel A-16 50' 283
Parcel A-16 60' 208

Econ Dev (50 Acres) 82 Parcel A-17 125
Town Center (53 Acres) 86.92 Parcel A-18 104

First Phase Non-Residential 168.92 Parcel A-19 135
Parcel A-20 55' 75

Total First Phase 1,304 Parcel A-20 65' 69
Parcel A-21 128

Third Phase Residential 2,180

Golf Course 356.81
Charter School 11.91

Comm Parcel "D" 159.80
Comm Parcel "H" 18.75
Comm Parcel "J" 35.67

Third Phase Non-Residential 583

Total Third Phase 2,763

TOTAL UNITS O&M per Unit
Phase 1 1,304
Phase 2 508 $4,965,806 / 4,575 $1,085.45
Phase 3 2,763

Total Units 4,575

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL UNITS
Phase 1 1,135
Phase 2 508
Phase 3 2,180

Total Units 3,823

TOTALCLUBHOUSE UNITS Clubhouse Operation per Unit
Phase 1 666
Phase 2 508 $1,739,655 / 1,174 $1,481.82

Total Units 1,174

     Note: Parcel A-5, Econ Dev, Town Center, and Phase 3 are Not Assessed For
     Clubhouse Assessment  - They Receives No Special Benefit

Total Gross Clubhouse Operation Expenses / Total Clubhouse Units = 

Lot Count Information

O&M Calculations

Total Gross O&M Expenses / Total O&M Units = 

XI  



 Avenir Community Development District
Assessment Comparison (Parcels A-10 -  A-21)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025

Gross Gross Gross Projected Gross
 Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-10 -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-10 -$                                                 2,845.00$                                        2,845.00$                                        2,845.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 2,845.00$                                        3,688.90$                                        3,930.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-11 -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-11 -$                                                 3,176.00$                                        3,176.00$                                        3,176.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 3,176.00$                                        4,019.90$                                        4,261.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-12 - Panther National -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-12 -$                                                 5,102.00$                                        5,102.00$                                        5,102.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 5,102.00$                                        5,945.90$                                        6,187.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-13/14 125' - Panther National -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-13/14 125' -$                                                 6,259.00$                                        6,259.00$                                        6,259.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 6,259.00$                                        7,102.90$                                        7,344.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-13/14 175' - Panther National -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-13/14 175' -$                                                 7,911.00$                                        7,911.00$                                        7,911.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 7,911.00$                                        8,754.90$                                        8,996.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-15 50' -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-15 50' -$                                                 1,889.00$                                        1,889.00$                                        1,889.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 1,889.00$                                        2,732.90$                                        2,974.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-15 62' -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-15 62' -$                                                 1,983.00$                                        1,983.00$                                        1,983.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 1,983.00$                                        2,826.90$                                        3,068.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-16 50' - Kolter -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2023) Assessment For Parcel A-16 50' -$                                                 -$                                                 5,670.00$                                        3,457.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 -$                                                 6,513.90$                                        4,542.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-16 60' - Kolter -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2023) Assessment For Parcel A-16 60' -$                                                 -$                                                 6,805.00$                                        4,149.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 -$                                                 7,648.90$                                        5,234.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-16 75' - Kolter -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2023) Assessment For Parcel A-16 75' -$                                                 -$                                                 7,373.00$                                        5,186.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 -$                                                 8,216.90$                                        6,271.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-17 -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2023) Assessment For Parcel A-17 -$                                                 -$                                                 3,176.00$                                        7,373.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 -$                                                 4,019.90$                                        8,458.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-18 - Kenco -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2024) Assessment For Parcel A-18 -$                                                 3,176.00$                                        7,373.00$                                        2,208.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 3,176.00$                                        8,216.90$                                        3,293.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-19 -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2023) Assessment For Parcel A-19 -$                                                 -$                                                 1,935.00$                                        7,373.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 -$                                                 2,778.90$                                        8,458.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-20 55' - Kolter -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-20 55' -$                                                 1,935.00$                                        2,030.00$                                        1,935.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 1,935.00$                                        2,873.90$                                        3,020.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-20 65' - Kolter -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-20 65' -$                                                 2,030.00$                                        3,176.00$                                        2,030.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 2,030.00$                                        4,019.90$                                        3,115.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Parcel A-21 -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Parcel A-21 -$                                                 3,176.00$                                        295.00$                                           3,176.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 3,176.00$                                        1,138.90$                                        4,261.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Golf Course -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Golf Course per Acre -$                                                 295.00$                                           2,247.00$                                        295.00$                                                           

Total -$                                                 295.00$                                           3,090.90$                                        1,380.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Charter School -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2021) Assessment For Charter School per Acre -$                                                 2,247.00$                                        7,044.00$                                        2,247.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 2,247.00$                                        7,887.90$                                        3,332.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Commercial Parcel "D" -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2023) Assessment For Commercial Parcel "D" -$                                                 -$                                                 1,481.00$                                        7,044.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 -$                                                 2,324.90$                                        8,129.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Commercial Parcel "H" -$                                                 -$                                                 843.90$                                           1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2023) Assessment For Commercial Parcel "H" -$                                                 -$                                                 7,044.00$                                        1,481.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 -$                                                 7,887.90$                                        2,566.45$                                                        

O&M Assessment For Commercial Parcel "J" -$                                                 -$                                                 1,002.99$                                        1,085.45$                                                        
Debt (2023) Assessment For Commercial Parcel "J" -$                                                 -$                                                 7,044.00$                                        7,044.00$                                                        

Total -$                                                 -$                                                 8,046.99$                                        8,129.45$                                                        

* Assessments Include the Following :
4% Discount for Early Payments 
1% County Tax Collector Fee
1% County Property Appraiser Fee

First Phase Second Phase Third Phase
Parcel A-1 98 Parcel A-6 245 Parcel A-10 172
Parcel A-2 92 Parcel A-7 47 Parcel A-11 101
Parcel A-3 119 Parcel A-8 98 Parcel A-12 139
Parcel A-4 107 Parcel A-9 118 Parcel A-13/14 125' 55
Parcel A-5 267 Total Second Phase 508 Parcel A-13/14 175' 24
Parcel A-5 202 Parcel A-15 50' 358
SF Villas 250 Parcel A-15 62' 204

First Phase Residential 1,135 Parcel A-16 50' 296
Parcel A-16 60' 193
Parcel A-16 75' 2

Econ Dev (50 Acres) 82 Parcel A-17 125
Town Center (53 Acres) 86.92 Parcel A-18 104

First Phase Non-Residential 168.92 Parcel A-19 135
Parcel A-20 55' 75

Total First Phase 1,304 Parcel A-20 65' 69
Parcel A-21 128

Third Phase Residential 2,180

Golf Course 356.81
Charter School 11.91

Comm Parcel "D" 159.80
Comm Parcel "H" 18.75
Comm Parcel "J" 35.67

Third Phase Non-Residential 583

Total Third Phase 2,763

TOTAL UNITS O&M per Unit
Phase 1 1,304
Phase 2 508 $4,965,806 / 4,575 $1,085.45
Phase 3 2,763

Total Units 4,575

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL UNITS
Phase 1 1,135
Phase 2 508
Phase 3 2,180

Total Units 3,823

Lot Count Information

O&M Calculations

Total Gross O&M Expenses / Total O&M Units = 

XII  



DATE:

PROJECT NUMBER:

202403

                                     

CONTRACTOR'S NAME Landscape Bid Amount
Irrigation Bid 

Amount
Total Bid Amount RANKING #

ARAZOZA BROTHERS $471,373.50 $265,000.00 $736,373.50 1

BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE 

SERVICES
$726,455.24 $219,731.29 $946,186.53 2

SELECTION CRITERIA POINT RANGE ARAZOZA BROTHERS
BRIGHTVIEW 

LANDSCAPE SERVICES

PERSONNEL 10 10 10

EXPERIENCE AND FAMILIARTY 

WITH THE PROJECT
35 35 30

UNDERSTANDING OF SCOPE OF 

WORK
5 5 5

PRICE (BID PRICE) 25 25 19

PRICE (UNIT PRICES) 10 10 8

SCHEDULE 15 15 15

TOTAL POINTS 100 100 87

PROJECT NAME:

May 23, 2024

EVALUATION CRITERIA - RANKING 

BIDS RANKING

NORTHLAKE BOULEVARD PARKWAY BUFFER EAST - LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION

ballbé associates, inc.

3564 n. ocean boulevard, fort lauderdale, florida 33308 • p-954-491-7811































































































































































































Natural Gas Service Agreement
agrees 

to sell gas to Customer under the rate classification indicated on the first page hereof and under the terms and conditions of this contract and pursuant to 
ion.

Customer: Phone:

     DBA:

Service Address:

Mailing Address:

     Rate Class: Connect Fee:   Monthly Charge:

Account Deposit: Appliance Conversion Charge:

Company contends to provide gas service to the Customer in consideration of the following appliance(s) being installed for gas operation with the estimated 
annual consumption.

Estimated Annual Usage in Therms:

Gas Appliance(s) Schedule Description
2.00 Other-1 firebowls

Account Manager: Phone:

  Field Coordinator: Phone:

This agreement shall not be binding upon Company until approved and accepted on its behalf by one of its representatives in the space provided below, 
and thereafter shall bind and benefit the parties hereto for the term of (___) years after the commencement of service by Company to Customer and 
thereafter from year to year until written notice of cancellation shall be given by either party to the other at least 90 days prior to the annual renewal date, 
their successors and assigns.  This agreement may not be amended or modified except by an instrument in writing signed by the Company and Customer.

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED:
By: By:

Florida Public 

Account Manager Customer

Date

Customer elects a minimum annual commitment in lieu of the advance in aid of construction as described on applicable tariff rate schedule.

(Applicable only to Customers Natural Gas Vehicle Service Rates)

Avenir Comm Dev. District -E Entrance

$150.00

561-630-4922

9106 Coconut Boulevard, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33412

Avenir Comm Dev. District -E Entrance

2501-A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

CS $125.00

N/A$1,590.00

Sean Jackson- WPB (561) 215-0161

6,400.00

Mauro Ruini

Mauro Ruini (561) 838-1719



Natural Gas Service Terms and Conditions 

The 
and Company agrees to sell gas to Customer under the rate classification indicated on the first page hereof and under the terms and 

ice 
Commission. 

Customer and owner agree to permit the Company to install its facilities on the property listed on the first page hereof and to provide 
Company with egress and ingress to install, maintain or remove its gas line and equipment and to periodically read meter.  Customer 
and owner further agree that all facilities installed by the Company, up to and including the outlet of the gas meter, shall forever remain 
the property of the Company.  Customer, if other than owner of property on which installation is to be made, shall provide Company 

 of a natural gas service on the property or have the 
 

Customer agrees to pay Company for all service rendered hereunder at the designated rate as it now or may subsequently be lawfully 
amended or superseded.  If Customer fails or refuses to take gas service from the Company, Customer shall pay to the Company the 
actual cost incurred by the Company in constructing the facilities to have been used in providing service to the Customer.  Any deposits 
currently held by the Company shall be forfeited by Customer in payment or partial payment of these costs. 

No agent or employee of Company has any power to amend or waive any of the provisions of this contract or to make any promise or 
representation contrary to, or inconsistent with, the provisions hereof.  This instrument constitutes the entire contract between the 
parties. 

Customer agrees to accept and be bound by all rules and regulations of Company in connection with the service hereby covered, which 
are now or may hereafter be filed with, issued and promulgated by the Florida Public Service Commission or other Governmental 
bodies having jurisdiction thereof. 

Company and Customer do respectively assume full responsibility and liability for the maintenance and operation of the facilities owned 
or operated by each  and each shall indemnify and save harmless the other from any and all loss or damage sustained, and from any 
and all liability including injury to persons and property incurred, arising from any act or accident in connection with the installation, 
presence, maintenance and operation of facilities operated by the indemnifying party unless the same shall be due to the sole 
negligence of the other party, its agents, employees, contractors, guests or invitees. 



Natural Gas Service Agreement
agrees 

to sell gas to Customer under the rate classification indicated on the first page hereof and under the terms and conditions of this contract and pursuant to 
ion.

Customer: Phone:

     DBA:

Service Address:

Mailing Address:

     Rate Class: Connect Fee:   Monthly Charge:

Account Deposit: Appliance Conversion Charge:

Company contends to provide gas service to the Customer in consideration of the following appliance(s) being installed for gas operation with the estimated 
annual consumption.

Estimated Annual Usage in Therms:

Gas Appliance(s) Schedule Description
2.00 Other-1 firebowls

Account Manager: Phone:

  Field Coordinator: Phone:

This agreement shall not be binding upon Company until approved and accepted on its behalf by one of its representatives in the space provided below, 
and thereafter shall bind and benefit the parties hereto for the term of (___) years after the commencement of service by Company to Customer and 
thereafter from year to year until written notice of cancellation shall be given by either party to the other at least 90 days prior to the annual renewal date, 
their successors and assigns.  This agreement may not be amended or modified except by an instrument in writing signed by the Company and Customer.

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED:
By: By:

Florida Public 

Account Manager Customer

Date

Customer elects a minimum annual commitment in lieu of the advance in aid of construction as described on applicable tariff rate schedule.

(Applicable only to Customers Natural Gas Vehicle Service Rates)

Avenir Comm Dev. District -W Entrance

$150.00

561-630-4922

9105 Coconut Boulevard, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33412

Avenir Comm Dev. District -W Entrance

2501-A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

CS $125.00

N/A$1,590.00

Sean Jackson- WPB (561) 215-0161

6,400.00

Mauro Ruini

Mauro Ruini (561) 838-1719



Natural Gas Service Terms and Conditions 

The 
and Company agrees to sell gas to Customer under the rate classification indicated on the first page hereof and under the terms and 

ice 
Commission. 

Customer and owner agree to permit the Company to install its facilities on the property listed on the first page hereof and to provide 
Company with egress and ingress to install, maintain or remove its gas line and equipment and to periodically read meter.  Customer 
and owner further agree that all facilities installed by the Company, up to and including the outlet of the gas meter, shall forever remain 
the property of the Company.  Customer, if other than owner of property on which installation is to be made, shall provide Company 

 of a natural gas service on the property or have the 
 

Customer agrees to pay Company for all service rendered hereunder at the designated rate as it now or may subsequently be lawfully 
amended or superseded.  If Customer fails or refuses to take gas service from the Company, Customer shall pay to the Company the 
actual cost incurred by the Company in constructing the facilities to have been used in providing service to the Customer.  Any deposits 
currently held by the Company shall be forfeited by Customer in payment or partial payment of these costs. 

No agent or employee of Company has any power to amend or waive any of the provisions of this contract or to make any promise or 
representation contrary to, or inconsistent with, the provisions hereof.  This instrument constitutes the entire contract between the 
parties. 

Customer agrees to accept and be bound by all rules and regulations of Company in connection with the service hereby covered, which 
are now or may hereafter be filed with, issued and promulgated by the Florida Public Service Commission or other Governmental 
bodies having jurisdiction thereof. 

Company and Customer do respectively assume full responsibility and liability for the maintenance and operation of the facilities owned 
or operated by each  and each shall indemnify and save harmless the other from any and all loss or damage sustained, and from any 
and all liability including injury to persons and property incurred, arising from any act or accident in connection with the installation, 
presence, maintenance and operation of facilities operated by the indemnifying party unless the same shall be due to the sole 
negligence of the other party, its agents, employees, contractors, guests or invitees. 











































































































 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Monthly Managers Report 
May 23, 2024 

 
Date of Report: 5/15/2024        __Submitted by: Richard Salvatore 
 
 
 

o Completed Tasks 
 Repair of the leaking roof, which was causing damage in the West bathrooms, has been 

completed. 
 Repair of damaged drywall and ceilings has also been completed. 

 Gym “After-hours” usage has begun. The new gym hours are 5 AM – 12 AM. 
 Last month’s approved landscaping improvements have been completed by Arazoza 

brothers. 
 Faulty exterior pavilion fans have been repaired. 
 Faulty interior Kids’ room fans have been replaced. 
 The gym / Aerobics room AC had a refrigerant leak, leaving the unit empty and 

inoperable. 
 The unit was leak checked, leak found and repaired, and recharged. 
 The unit is operating properly now. 

 
o Ongoing Tasks 

 2024 Handbook Revisions are underway, to be finalized and proposed soon. 
 The previously approved “Mr. Sparky” contract has been provided to the Vendor for 

review and execution. 
 Contracting/Scheduling of the gate install for the tennis access control project is 

underway. 
 

o Future Items 
 Working with Cintas to have “Avenir” Emblemized entry rugs are designed, proofs to be 

provided and brought for approval once received 
 Options to transition to electronic waivers/registrations (similar to a Dr’s office) are 

being explored to lower office supply cost. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

o Proposals for consideration 
 Proposals for the Summer Flower rotation: 

 CPM: $3,376.00  (Recommend) 

  



 
 

 Proposals for consideration 
 Two (2) Proposals for 

mulching of the clubhouse 
grounds. 

 CPM: $14,568.75 
(Recommend) 

 Arazoza Brothers: 
$18,967.14 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

 Proposals for consideration 
 Two (2) Proposals for requested tree trimming behind the pool deck, overlooking the 

golf course. 
 Arazoza Brothers: $3,840.00 (Recommend) 
 CPM: $6,800.00 

 

  



 
 

 Proposals for consideration 
 Additional Expenses for access control project from Mr. Sparky 

 $2,742.00 for trenching to pickleball / tennis courts, and addition of GFI’s. 

 
  



 
 

 
Lifestyle Directors Report 

 
Date of Report: 5/15/2024                                           Submitted by: Patrice Chiaramonte 
 
Completed Events:   
 
Friday, April 26th – Adult only - Studio 54   
Forty residents participated in this event. The event hall was converted to “Studio 54” club setting. 
Residents enjoyed a DJ, Cash Bar, Old School Food Truck, and professional pictures on the spot.  

 

 
 
Saturday, May 4th  2024- Mothers Day 
Over fifty residents enjoyed a day at the pool with their mom’s! Residents enjoyed a kid’s craft for 
Moms, Vendor shopping, gifts for mom, and The Picnic food truck.  

 
  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

Summer Events: 

 

Friday May 17th:  Best Pizza Heaven Food Truck Friday 

Saturday May 25th : Memorial Day Pool Party ( Good Days Pizza Food Truck, DJ)  

Saturday June 8th : Fathers Day Pool Party ( A Cutlet Above Food Truck, Vendors)  

Saturday June 15th : Saturday Morning Coffee Food Truck ( Café Tico)  

Friday June 21st : Food Truck Friday ( A Cutlet Above)  

Saturday June 29th : Independence Day Celebration BBQ Pool Party ( G;s BBQ, Ice Rolls) 

Saturday July 6th : Food Truck, Poolside ( Meat in the Middle)  

Saturday July 13th : Food Truck, Poolside ( Le Coin a Crepe)  

Friday July 19th : Paint and Sip ( Viral Tik Tok Challenge)  

Saturday July 20th : Firepit Festival, Food Trucks ( 681 Seafood, Vendors )   

Friday August 16th : Food Truck Friday- G’s Hibachi  

Saturday August 16th : Labor Day Tiki Tangle Pool Party ( Meat in the Middle, Steele Drum 

band) 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

Field Operations Manager Report 
 

Date Submitted:  5/15/24                       _______________    Submitted by: Jorge Rodriguez 
 
Completed Tasks 

 All amenity sidewalks and curbs have been pressure washed. 
 The pool deck has been completely pressure-washed. 
 East and west pavilions have been pressure washed. 
 All A/C unit’s drain lines have been cleaned and treated. 
 All A/C unit filters have been replaced. 
 All tennis court screens have been reinstalled back on the fences after the recent storms.  
 The repainting of the aerobics room was completed on February 27th. 

 
Weekly Projects 

 All garbage cans outside the clubhouse, within tennis and pickleball courts, and down Avenir 
Drive and Northlake Blvd are emptied and cleaned as needed. 

 All exterior light fixtures are inspected nightly, and Interior lights are inspected daily. 
 The 6 Clay Tennis Courts are raked and rolled thrice weekly. (Mon, Wed, Fri) 
 All 8 hard floor Tennis Courts and pickleball courts are blown daily to clean debris. 
 All Clubhouse grounds, including parking lots, sidewalks, pool deck, playgrounds, etc., are blown 

daily. 
 The playgrounds are being pressure washed weekly. All the equipment safety checked and 

tightened. 
 All pools, splash pad, spa, and fountains are maintained daily to FL DoH standards. 
 All the outside recessed lighting covers have been removed and cleaned, removing all bugs and 

webs.  

 

Current and Ongoing Project 

 All clubhouse rugs are currently being shampooed and deep cleaned for stain and marking 
removal. 

 Interior touch-up paints are ongoing throughout the clubhouse to restore the original aesthetic. 
 Pressure washing of the entire pool deck began the week of 5/13. 


	Avenir Community Development District - May 23, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	April 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	New Business
	Consider Resolution 2024-08 – Approving the Process for Requesting Temporary Access over District Property for Landowner Improvements
	Consider Landscape Maintenance Contract Award (Common Area and Clubhouse)
	Consider Resolution 2024-09 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Proposed Budget
	Consider Northlake Blvd Parkway Buffer (Town Center) Landscape And Irrigation Contract Award

	Change Orders
	Consider Approval of Northlake Boulevard Phase 1 – J.W. Cheatham, LLC CO 5 ($328,898.00)
	Consider Approval of Northlake Boulevard Phase 2 – J.W. Cheatham, LLC CO 7 ($1,344,517.09)

	Consent Agenda
	Consider Ratification of Ballbe Proposal for Control Structure and Outfall Canal
	Consider Ratification of Caulfied Wheeler Agreement (Coconut Ext SUA & SFWM)
	Consider Ratification of Caulfied Wheeler Agreement (Divosta Final Closing-Lake Interconnect Dedication)
	Consider Ratification of Caulfied Wheeler Agreement (Town Center Utility Easement)
	Consider Ratification of FPL Underground Agreement
	Consider Ratification of HSQ Supplemental Agreement 16
	Consider Ratification of HSQ Supplemental Agreement 17
	Consider Ratification of Natural Gas Agreement (Avenir E Entrance)
	Consider Ratification of Natural Gas Agreement (Avenir W Entrance)
	Consider Ratification of Caulfield – Pod 11 Phase 1 & 2 SUA Easements
	Consider Ratification of Caulfield – Spine 3 SUA Easements

	Clubhouse Management Update




